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Colloquy 4

THE COURT: -- (audio on) take the Zirkle
matter. This is Docket L-567-11, the Petition of
Ernest 7Zirkle and Cynthia Zirkle vs, Vivian Henry, Mark
Henry, et al.

May I have appearances, please, Mr. Serata?

MR. SERATA: My name 1is Samuel J. Serata. I'm
one of the attorneys for the Petitioners.

MS. VENETIS:: Penny Venetis, Rutgers
Constitutional Litigation Clinic, on behalf of the
Petitioners.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MS. PROCOPIO: Good afternoon, Your Honor.

Kim Procopio on behalf of the County Clerk,
Gloria Noto.

MR. COHEN: And Your Honor, George Cohen,
Deputy Attorney General, on behalf of the Cumberland
County Board of Elections.

THE COURT: Thank you. Please be seated.

Feel free to remain seated while you address me. Where
are we here?

MR. SERATA: Judge --

THE COURT: We -- do we -- I mean, I -- do we
need testimony of anything?

MR. SERATA: I beg your pardon?

THE COURT: Do we need testimony of anything?

Colloquy 5

I think the record’s pretty complete here of what’s
going on.

MR. SERATA: I think it’s fairly complete,
Judge. There are two things that are pending. There’s
a return day of an Order to Show Cause of why the
Petitioner’s should not get information that’s set
forth in that Order to Show Cause.

That reflects upon the interference, I’11 put
it that way, whether it’s delivered or not, I don’'t
know, with the computer when we went there with our
expert to inspect it.

That’s returnable today and there’s a Motion
pending that is sort of like an offer of judgment on
the part of the Cumberland County Board of Elections.

THE COURT: Well, let’s -- let me try to
address what I think the issues are. Let’s start with,
in reading all of your pleadings, in reading everything
that all the parties have submitted.

And by the way, are Vivian Henry and
Mark Henry here today?

MR. HENRY: Yes. Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Would you come up, please?

MS. HENRY: Sure.

THE COURT: And you can sit in those two
chairs right behind them. Mr. and Mrs. -- are you
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Colloquy 6
Mr. and Mrs.?

MR. HENRY: Yes.

THE COURT: You’re parties in this litigation.
You’ re not represented by attorneys. I assume you
decided to represent yourselves?

MR. HENRY: Yes. I mean, it’s very simple.
Should votes -- whatever the votes are, that’s what it
should be. I have the right --

THE COURT: I'm sorry, sir?

MR. HENRY: Whatever the votes are, that’s
what it should be. If they find something, then that’s
what it should be. Whoever won, won, and that’s where
I am with the issue.

I don’t think I need any legal, you know,
counseling for that. It's whatever is right and
whatever 1s just.

THE COURT: All right. Well, as I was saying,
looking at all the pleadings, it appears that there is
a clear conclusion that something was wrong with this
election.

And that the way that the machine was
programmed or alternatively, some altercation -- some
alteration took place, someone altered what was done.

The votes that were cast at the election were
not properly reflected in the results that were

Collogquy 7
certified to the Clerk. Does everyone agree with that?
Mr. Serata, do you agree with that?

MR. SERATA: Yes, Judge. I can’t disagree but
I think that’s only part of the conclusiocn.

The net result is, I believe, that for one
reason or another votes that were cast for Henry went
to the Zirkle’s and the Zirkle’s -- and the Henry’s got
the votes that were cast for the Zirkle’s. That T
agree with but I think that there’'s --

THE COURT: That’s not what I said.

MR. SERATA: I'm sorry.

THE COURT: I said that the votes that were
certified were not accurate. That’s what I'm saying.

MR. SERATA: Yes, that’s correct, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay. Do you agree with that?

MS. PROCOPIO: I do, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you agree with that?

MR. COHEN: I do, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. and Mrs. Henry, do you
disagree with that?

MR. HENRY: Yes. Well, I don’t have no answer
because I haven’t done any research so I wouldn’t know.
I’'m just taking that based on what I'm hearing today.

THE COURT: So if we all agree on that item,
then it seems that we get to the next step, which is
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The Court 38

that either there has to be a new election or I certify
the Zirkle’s as the winner of the election that took
place; okay?

So the first issue I want you to address is
whether you believe there should be a new electicn or
whether I should certify or declare the Zirkle’s as the
winner of the election that took place; okay?

Once we get around that, if there’s a new
election is the result, then I need to set a date for a
new election. When we get beyond that, then the
question becomes; what more do I need to do in this
case?

As far as with respect to everything that has
been raised by the Plaintiffs, as to the supposed human
error in connection with the programming of the machine
and the testing of the machine.

And then what appears to be the deletion of
certain files that took place before the Plaintiff’s
experts could examine the machine.

So the second issue I want you to address 1is,
once T get over the first issue, what do I do with the
second issue? Do I hold onto this case and continue
your investigations, your discovery?

Or do I say enough, I’'ve ordered a new
election. You got what you wanted in this and it

Colloquy 9
there’s any irregularity, that’s for the Attorney
General to look into, investigate. Bring charges if
they are appropriate. Illegality, criminality that took
place here.

That’s the way I see it as the two primary
issues I need to address here today. Now, does anyone
see any other issues I need to address?

MR. SERATA: I think you have a good analysis
of the issues, Judge. I am -- I filed and I don’t know
if you had an opportunity this morning.

THE COURT: I looked at everything.

MR. SERATA: A Motion with regard to
spoliation of the evidence.

THE COURT: Right. Well that, and that goes
to your question of whether T should impose sanctions,
counsel fees, et cetera. We’ll leave that until the
very end.

MR. SERATA: It goes to the issue of the
investigation, also, into it.

THE COURT: It does, if I'm going to let you
investigate any further. If I reach that that 1is the
conclusion.

MR. SERATA: Yes.

THE COURT: So let’s first have you each
address the first issue; new election versus declare
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Colloquy 10
the Zirkle’s the winner. Mr. Serata, I’11 hear from
vou first, sir.

MR. SERATA: On that issue, Judge, I think
that it is not very difficult to indicate that the
Zirkle’s have won the election. It doesn’t matter
which of the Certifications you look at.

And if you assume that whatever was done to
the machine or wasn’t done, or as far as the
programming of the buttons on the machine, it was --
1t’s acknowledged by the Board of Elections.

That votes cast were —-- for the Henry’s were
attributed to the Zirkle’s and the Zirkle’s votes were
attributed to the Henry’s, and I don’t see any -- there
seems to be no disagreement.

THE COURT: Does your own expert conclude
that?

MR. SERATA: Yes.

THE COURT: Does Mr. Appel (Phonetic) -- is
that --

MR. SERATA: Yes.

THE COURT: Is it Mr. or Dr. Appel?

MS. VENETIS:: Doctor and Professor. He’s
head of the Computer Science --

THE COURT: Does he have a PhD?

MS. VENETIS:: He does have a PhbD.

Colloquy 11

THE COURT: Call him a doctor. Dr. Appel
seems to, 1if I read his latest Certification, he says
that because of the deletion of the files when he went
to inspect.

He’s having difficulty determining whether
there was simply a programming error and an error by
the technicians in testing, or whether something more
nefarious took place here. Am I correct that that’s
what he’s concluding.

MR. SERATA: He can’t tell that, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. VENETIS:: Right. But Your Honor, he does
-- 1if I may? He does in his Certification say that,
regardless of what happened, he can actually tell that
the Zirkle’s did win the election.

I believe he talks about that in great detail
about he measured the particular buttons and the
spacing on the ballot and he is confident that the
Zirkle’s did win the election, based on his
investigation.

THE COURT: Okay. Let me -- Attorney General,
what’s your position, Mr. Cohen?

MR. COHEN: Your Honor, we agree. The
Professor Appel’s Certification actually says exactly
what Ms. Hernandez said; that there was a switch.
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Colloquy 12

Not that he thinks that there was but based
upon the computer programming, that the -- I mean, they
say elither the programming or whatever other means they
want to allege.

But they say it shows that votes cast for
Henry went to the Zirkle’s and votes cast for the
Zirkle’s went to the Henry’s. So that --

THE COURT: So you don’t think I should order
a new election? I should Jjust declare Zirkle the
winner?

MR. COHEN: We don’t take a position on that.
It"s —-- you know, normally we would say you need a new
election but if the Court is satisfied that that’s
exactly what happened and that there are no other votes
lost.

And we do know from the discovery that the
Court ordered on July 11, all discovery took place.

All the documents were given and we know from looking
at the number of people who voted were 43 and each had
the right to vote twice for council.

There were in fact 86 votes. No votes were
lost. No people -- there were no illegal votes in
there. All the votes were counted so if the Court is
satisfied, the Court could in fact say the Board can
certify the Zirkle's.

Colloquy 13

THE COURT: Ms. Procopio, do you have a
position on that?

MS. PROCOPIO: The County Clerk’s position is
that as long as there’s a free, fair and representative
election of the residents of Cumberland County, we take
no position as to whether Your Honor calls it for the
Zirkle’'s or orders a new election.

The County Clerk’s position has always been
whatever 1s necessary for a fair election for the
people of Cumberland County is all that matters.

THE COURT: Mr. Harvey, do you want to hbhe
heard on that issue?

MR. COHEN: Henry.

MR. HENRY: Henry.

THE COURT: Mr. Henry. I'm sorry.

MR. HENRY: Yes. Personally, if they feel as
though that they’ve won and everyone feels all that
confident about that, I take it that we should have a
re-election to prove that because if they won, they’1l
win again i1f that was the --

THE COURT: Mrs. Henry, do you want to be
heard on that?

MS. HENRY: No, thank you.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Let’s go to the
second 1ssue. Mr. Serata, what do I do with this now?
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Colloquy 14

Something went wrong. We know something went wrong.
I's your goal to re-open Judge Feinberg’s litigation, as
the Attorney General seems to imply?

That what you’re doing here is really trying
to have this Court get involved in this statewide issue
of whether the Sequcia machine is a good machine that
the State of New Jersey should be using.

Or should I confine myself just to this one
district election and getting it right?

MR. SERATA: Judge, I think --

THE COURT: Because it does appear that what
you want to do now is go much farther than that.

MR. SERATA: That’s not true, Judge. What we
want to do is, we want to find out why it was that the
Cumberland County Board of Elections did not secure the
machines, secure the computer. Allowed somebody else
to tamper with it or touch it, without a Court Oirder.

THE COURT: Are we talking about before the
election or before your inspection?

MR. SERATA: Before our inspection. That’s
the problem.

THE COURT: Well, we have the Certification of
the computer guy.

MS. PROCOPIO: Mr. Cossaboon (Phonetic).

MR. SERATA: Yes.

Colloquy 15

THE COURT: Yeah. He says what happened.
What more are we going to find out? Going to put
people under lie detectors? What are we going to do?

MR. SERATA: Well, I think that we —-- I think
that -- I don’t understand why, when there’s a Court
Order sequestering the machine and all the --

THE COURT: It didn’t sequester the laptop.

MR. SERATA: No, but it secured all the -- it
sequestered all of the --

THE COURT: I read the Order. It didn’t say
anything about the laptop.

MR. SERATA: I know. But you sequestered all
of the documents that were involved with that election.
Those documents are now unobtainable for anybody to
examine in that laptop.

Because of the interference with tThe evidence
and the destruction of the evidence that was
accomplished, interestingly enough, the day before the
inspection was scheduled.

And you had scheduled the inspection of that
laptop and it was part of the Order that you gave. So
that you have a spoliation of evidence that was
involved in this case, Judge, and I --

THE COURT: So let’s say I find -- let’s say
we do find that. Then what?
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Colloquy 16

MR. SERATA: Then we’re entitled to sanctions.
We’'re entitled at least to our attorneys fees but I
think that it’s more important than that.

THE COURT: Would there be a crime that was
committed?

MR. SERATA: I don’t know, Judge.

THE COURT: Wouldn’'t it be Obstruction of
Justice?

MR. SERATA: I don’t know, Judge. I don’t
know. There’s a specific criminal aspect to the
section of the elections law that deals with computers.
I["m not here --

THE COURT: But I mean, isn’t that a classic
Obstruction of Justice situation? If somebody w.th the
proper culpability decided to destroy documents --

MR. SERATA: Well, frankly -~

THE COURT: -- that were part of this
litigation, isn’t that an Obstruction of Justice?

MR. SERATA: Could be, but it’s also —-

THE COURT: Who investigates criminal cases?
Not me?

MR. SERATA: No, not you. You --

THE COURT: Separation of powers. It seems
that’s the Attorney General’s role.

MR. SERATA: In the application that I have

Colloquy 17

pending before you, I suggested, I filed this morning
or we filed this morning, we asked that you perhaps
think in terms of a Standing Master to investigate the
matter or the --

THE COURT: What do I do with the results?

MR. SERATA: The results could be --

THE COURT: The Standing Master comes back and
says there was criminality here. Then what do I do?

MR. SERATA: Very good. Then the duty of the
Court 1s to refer to the proper enforcement agency.

THE COURT: I can do that now. I don’t need a
Special Master for that.

MR. SERATA: Then --

THE COURT: He’s got a lot of investigators, a
lot of lawyers in that office, the Attorney General’s
Office, and that’s what they’re there to do, is
investigate crimes.

MR. SERATA: T understand and they’1ll
partition this case off from the rest of their office,
I would assume.

THE COURT: I don’t know what they’d do but I
assume that -- I don’t think the Attorney that’s before
me, Mr. Cohen, 1is in the criminal section of the
Attorney General’s Office.

MR. SERATA: But I --
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Colloquy 18

THE COURT: I assume he can send a letter to
the criminal section and say, something happened down
there in Cumberland County and the Judge is requesting
that you look into this, and they can look into it.

And if there’s crime, they can do what
Prosecutors do, so if a Special Master says there’s
crimes. Now, if the Special Master says that there
wasn’t a crime, then what do I do?

MR. SERATA: If he says what? That --

THE COURT: That there wasn’t a crime. That
it was just an innocent mistake.

MR. SERATA: Then you have your report, Judge.
I don’t know the answer to that. We haven’t been able
to determine it and I’m very concerned because it
involves the validity of the voting system in
Cumberland County.

And it does have bearing, unfortunately,
since you want to keep away from the Gusciora case, but
the problem is, Judge, that there the State was
mandated to do certain things with regard to training
the people who handle elections throughout the State.

And apparently, it wasn’t done in this
instance and in this instance, the Board of Elections
did not observe the sanctity of your Order that said
that these materials were supposed to be preserved and

Colloquy 19

protected because they --

THE COURT: What’s my legal authority tc go on
this quest of investigation? What section of the
election law —--

MR. SERATA: Well, I indicated —-

THE COURT: -- or of any law gives me the
authority to go on this quest?

MR. SERATA: Judge, that’s a Motion that I
filed this morning and I indicated that we would have a
Brief to support it within five working days and we
will support that position.

THE COURT: Are you aware of any law that says
that or you need five days to find one?

MR. SERATA: I -- Judge, Judge, this case 1is,
as far as I'm concerned, Jjust the local case has become
a thing of its own, as far as I am concerned. There

are limits as to what you can do time-wise.

THE COURT: But I guess my question is, you
bring an election contest before a 3uperior Court
Judge. Something comes up that causes that Judge to be
concerned about whether some criminality took place.

And you’re asking me to take steps; appolnt a
Special Master, allow you to go on a full investigatory
mission. What -- where am I -- where’s my authority by
law to do that?
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Colloquy 20

MR. SERATA: Judge, Judge, number one; that
Motion I filed this morning, I don’'t -- we’re going to
-—- and we’'re not prepared completely to start with that
but my associate counsel would like to address.

MS. VENETIS:: Your Honor, if I may? We have
-— the Brief is almost finished. It was not polished
enough on such short notice to be able to file it with
the Court today. We will have it filed with the Court
in five days. But let me --

THE CQOURT: Is there any statute that you can
turn to that says that I have this authority?

MS. VENETIS:: Your Honor, you do. We have a
case pending before you; there is an obstruction of
justice and spoliation of evidence. We have a filed a
Motion so that the Court can make certain findings of
fact.

One finding of fact is that evidence was
destroyed. The second is that the Court certainly does
have the legal authority to make a legal conclus.on and
this is supported by numerous spoliation cases
including ones from the New Jersey Supreme Court.

That 1if evidence is destroyed, the Court has
within its authority the ability to make an adverse
finding of fact, as it relates to the party that
spoliated the evidence. In this case, we’re requesting

Colloguy 21

as the Order --

THE COURT: But that adverse finding of fact
gives you the result that you’re asking for. The
adverse finding of fact is that the election’s no good
and I should order a new election or declare the
Zirkle’s the winner.

MS. VENETIS:: Well, that actually conclude --

THE COURT: You're asking me, if I -- I'm
giving you the relief you want. I’m finding the
election was no good and then I’ll address whether I
order a new election or whether I declare the Zirkle'’s
the winner.

MS. VENETIS:: Right. But there are also --

THE COURT: But you’re asking me to go
further. You’re asking me -- I believe in France,
courts do prosecution, they do investigations.

Here in this country, we have Grand Juries
for that. We have prosecutors, we have separation of
powers. The Court is not an investigatory body.

MS. VENETIS:: We understand that. That’s why
our application reqguested that if the Court deems it
necessary, that the Court appoint a Special Master. We
have made an application for attorneys fees --

THE COURT: But what’s my authority?

MS. VENETIS:: Your authority to do it 1is that
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Colloguy 22
there was an obstruction of justice and if the Court
suspects that in this election matter that is still
pending before the Court, there was a criminal act
involved.

That the Court can actually ask an
investigative body, whether it be the Prosecutor’s
Office, the Attorney General’s Office or an independent
Master, to actually conduct an investigation. Then --

THE COURT: So you agree I have the option to
say the Attorney General can investigate 1t?

MS. VENETIS:: In this case =-- under normal
circumstances, I think the answer would be ves. 1In
this circumstance where the Attorney General is a party
appearing in the case.

Where the Attorney General’s Office was
involved and in coming to the investigation and --

THE COURT: The criminal division of the
Attorney General is not a party in this case.

MS. VENETIS:: Your Honor --

THE COURT: A totally separate -- it’s a total
separate -- I don’t believe -- I don’t know what walls
are created in your office, Mr. Cohen, but I -- my

understanding is criminal justice is totally separate
than the civil part of your office.
MR. COHEN: It’s a total separate division. I

Argument - Ms. Venetis 23

am employed by the Division of Law in the office and
the Department of Law and Public Safety.

There is a Division of Criminal Justice in
the Department of Law and Public Safety. It’s a
totally separate division.

MS. VENETIS:: Your Honor, we believe that
because this is linked so closely to a civil case that
the Court -- and that there was a direct flouting, a
deliberate flouting of the Court’s Order, that very few
items be secured.

The Court didn’t issue a broad Order
impounding the entire contents of the warehouse at the
Board of Elections. The Court issued a very, vevy
targeted and specific Order that included --

THE COURT: That you prepared.

MS. VENETIS:: That we prepared, exactly. And
the Court -- the Orders talk about the examination of
the computers. It talks about anything related to the
election of --

THE COURT: But your Order didn’t say the
laptop of the administrator.

MR. SERATA: Oh, yes it did.

MS. VENETIS:: Your Honor, it says documents.
The dccuments related to the ballot were contained on
the laptop, which is what we -- which is why we wanted
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Argument - Ms. Venetis 24

to examine it.

And the Court issued an Order granting us
permlssion to examine it. I have to tell you, the
Order was quite strict. Professor Appel wasn’t even
permitted to touch these materials.

And we didn’t fight that provision when the
Attorney General’s Office was negotiating it with us
because the Court had issued an Order asking that
nobody touch the voting machines unless everybody were
present.

We don’t quite understand how, given the
Court’s specific Orders, how -- and the State and the
County’s concern about our expert touching it, even in
the presence of six other people.

How they let somebody else in, who has
nothing to do with this case, to come in and erase all
the contents of what would have provided material
evidence in determining what happened on June 7 in
Cumberland County.

You know, this case really calls into
question, as my co-counsel said, the integrity of
elections in Cumberland County, and because of the
actions taken by the Board of Elections, it has become
a bigger issue.

And ultimately, if the Court wants the voters

Argument - Ms. Venetis 25

of Cumberland County to have faith that their votes are
going to be counted and that the system is not
insecure, then I believe that the Court has an
obligation to actually retain jurisdiction over this
case and order an investigation.

What would the investigation turn up? I
don’t know but frankly, it seems very unusual that the
day before our expert is to go in to figure out unat
happened on June 7, the contents of the machine that
would have given him that information was erased. It
is very, very difficult --

THE COURT: Who do I order to do this
investigation? A Special Master?

MS. VENETIS:: Yes, Your Honor. We believe a
Special -~

THE COURT: Who mays that Special Master?

M5. VENETIS:: We believe the County has to
pay for the Special Master. The evidence was there in
that voting -- in that computer, Your Honor. Our
expert would have gone in. They didn’t want him
touching anything.

He had to take photographs of what happened,
of the files that he needed to see and I believe
Ms. Hernandez is the person who pressed the button.

So it’s really the County. The County
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Argument - Ms. Venetis 26

brought in somebody who got rid of the evidence that
would have allowed the Court to actually make the
determination.

Frankly, if Dr. Appel had gotten the
information, your first statement would have been
answered, which is what happened here.

The Court would have known whether or not
there was deliberate manipulation or inadvertent
manipulation. We wouid have had the answer today,
after Professor Appel’s examination.

Because the evidence that would have given us
and hence, the Court, the answer was destroyed, we
don’t have an answer to that and the Court --

THE COURT: The --

MS. VENETIS:: -- actually doesn’t know
whether he’s going to order the Zirkle’s the winners or
order a special election. With that --

THE COURT: Can anybody answer that? The
pre—lat testing, 1f it was done at all; did that
produce any documents or were they only on the laptop?

MS. VENETIS:: Your Honor, the pre-lat tests
-- first of all, we have not gotten full discovery in
this case and Your Honor made a statement when he came
on the bench, saying that the record is fairly
complete.

Argument - Ms. Venetis 27

The record 1s not complete. We have not
gotten discovery. This would have been a critical part
of discovery. We haven’t gotten all of the documents
and now the case has taken a turn.

We really would have liked to have had a
evidentiary hearing today or to actually be able to
sort out what happened on June 7. We don’t know. It
seems from Certifications that Ms. Hernandez has
submitted in the past, that they did not do any sort of
tests.

Judge Feinberg, in her Opinion, talks about
various checks that are performed in the State and we
disagree. There was only one county that performed any
sort of checks.

But putting that aside, that’s something
we’re going to take up with the Appellate Division.
Clearly, there’s no checks and balances in Cumberland
County, which means that Judge Feinberg got it wrong in
her Opinion.

There’s no instructions from the State on how
to run elections. There’s no requirement that testing
takes place. There’s no requirement that these voting
machines be secured. Professor Appel, in his
Certification =--

THE COURT: You say, though, that -- the
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question I asked 1is, because as I understand it, the
pre-lat, the results are supposed to be printed and you
asked for that in discovery, the printed results?

MS. VENETIS:: Right. Your Honor, they --

THE COURT: Have they been -- they have not
been supplied?

M5S. VENETIS:: Many discovery items have not
been supplied. That --

THE COURT: Does that mean they don’t exist or
does that mean they haven’t been supplied?

MS. VENETIS:: I don’'t -- Your Honor, I don’'t
know and as --

THE COURT: Well, let me ask the Attorney
General? Do you know the answer to that?

MR. COHEN: Yeah. Judge, this is a new one on

me . You —-- on July 11, you gave us ten days to provide
discovery. In three days, we provided all discovery.
There was one item that -~ one or two items
that Mr. Serata said we didn’t give and we did give him
that. We have gotten no requests, no letters, nothing
saying that we haven’t fully complied with all
discovery. I have no idea what she’s talking abcut.
THE COURT: Well, clearly, I have Judge
Feinberg —-- I have to remember. Upstairs we have

Fineman and that’s --
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MS. VENETIS:: It’s Feinberqg, Your Honor.

THE COURT: As Judge Feinberg laid out in her
beautiful Decilision; you may not agree with it but it
certainly gives us a good handle on how this all works.

There are these pre-lat tests that are done

and they’re supposed to be printed. Certainly, scmeone
could answer pretty quickly whether there is a --
anything that was printed in these pre -- maybe

Ms. Hernandez can answer that.

MS. HERNANDEZ: (inaudible), Your Honor.
Actually, Professor Appel took pictures of those on
August 17.

THE COURT: Pictures of --

MS. HERNANDEZ: Of the things that --

THE COURT: =-- something on the computer or
something that was actually --

MS. HERNANDEZ: No, something that was
actually printed. BAll the pre-lat testing, all the
testing, he took pictures of on that day.

MS. PROCOPIO: They were tape, like a register
tape, and he photographed them.

MS. VENETIS:: Right, Your Honor.

THE COURT: So ycu have them?

MS. VENETIS:: Your Honor, if I may say
somethling? The pre-lat test is something that’s called
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a pre-logic accuracy test.

THE COURT: Logic and accuracy test.

MS. VENETIS:: Yes. Thank you for correcting
me. That'’s supposed to be generated before the
election.

It’s supposed to be a way -- basically, it’s
like a false election, where someone casts a number of
votes to determine whether the buttons are actually --
the votes counts correspond with the candidates so that
would --

THE COURT: Yeah. The technician is actually
supposed to conduct a mock election; right?

MS. VENETIS:: And Ms. Hernandez admitted in
her Certification that she didn’t test, she didn’t
check those results so there were no checks that were
performed.

THE COURT: Well, she wouldn’t. The
technicians would do it.

MS. VENETIS:: Somebody, but whoever it was
didn’t do it and that’s part of the problem. There’s
no uniform --

MR. COHEN: Your Honor, if I --

MS. VENETIS:: -- anything, excuse me, irom
the State. There’s no uniform way to conduct pre-lat
tests. There’s no uniform requirement that anybody

Colloqguy 31

check the pre-lat results.

THE COURT: Can anybody answer for me this
simple question? Did the technicians who did the
pre—-lat tests conduct a mock election, where they put
tive votes in for Zirkle, three in for Henry or
whatever they did, and print out the results to see if
they came in right?

MS. VENETIS:: I think --

THE COURT: Can anybody answer that simple
question for me?

MS. VENETIS:: I think Ms. Hernandez savs --
Your Honor --

THE COURT: Ms. Hernandez 1s standing up. Let
her answer.

MS. VENETIS:: Yes. And Your Honor, there is
no open discovery in this case. Full discovery --

THE COURT: But she’s saying there is. She’s
saying that Mr. Appel photographed all that
information.

MS. VENETIS:: Right. And Mr. -- and
Professcr Appel went back to his office, looked at what
he photographed and immediately called Mr. Serata and
me, saying critical evidence that I needed has been
destroyed.

As a result, Mr. Serata filed the current
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Order to Show Cause and we started working on the
spoliation Brief. So for the time being that
discovery, again, that would --

THE COURT: We lost sight of that issue.

MS. VENETIS:: -- have been critical for us,
has been shelved.

THE COURT: We lost sight of that issue.

MS. VENETIS:: So, which is important. And I
think also, the Court needs to know two things. Number
one; what happened on June 7%

Is Cumberland County following any sort of
procedures to prepare and (inaudible) the voting
machines?

So that’s the first question that we don’t
have answers to and the second question is; what
happened the day before our expert was supposed to
examine the evidence? Why did it disappear?

THE COURT: Okay. Let me ask Ms. Hernandez;
can you answer my question?

MS. HERNANDEZ: Yes. It was performed.

THE COURT: It was?

MS. HERNANDEZ: Yes, it was performed. There
was that pre-lat done. What the technicians missed is
where they actually pushed the button to hear people’s
names, to hear the candidate’s names.

Colloguy 33

That’s their mistake. That’s where they
missed the Zirkle mistake.

MR. COHEN: What that means, Judge, is when
they pushed the button for Zirkle, it should have said
Zirkle and when they pushed the button for Henry, 1it

should have said Henry.

In this instance, if they had done that and
pushed Zirkle, they would have heard Henry and then
they pushed Henry, they would have heard Zirkle. That
apparently was not done.

MS. VENETIS:: But again, Your Honor, we don’t
have sworn testimony. We don’t have any sworn
interrogatories, any deposition testimony. Again, it’s
important to find out what happened so that it dcesn’t
happen again.

This was fortuitous in that there were only a
few voters and they happened to come up to the Zirkle’s
afterwards and say, how did you lose? We voted for
you.

But can you imagine if this were a general
election? You can’t recreate what happened in --

THE COURT: We’d be standing there looking at
chads hanging out? Is that what we’d be doing?

MS. VENETIS:: Well, it’s --

THE COURT: Yeah.
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MS. VENETIS:: It’s of that magnitude,

Your Honor.

THE COURT: Yeah.

MS. VENETIS:: I mean, people who, as
Mr. Henry put it so I --

THE COURT: So my point -- by the way, 1
didn’t mean to be sarcastic. I meant how very
important that is -~

MS. VENETIS:: Yeah. I know, it is and --

THE COURT: -- that fthese elections be
reliable.

MS. VENETIS:: And I think Mr. Henry got it
right by saying whoever is the just winner should win.
But we can’'t -- we -- the process is such that for this
election, you’re able to figure it out.

But for subsequent elections, we have no
confidence in either the way the Board of Elections
runs the elections or whether the machines are secure
enough to prevent from deliberate tampering and that’s
a problem.

THE COURT: All right. I agree.

MR. SERATA: May I just say one thing? One of
the things that you ordered, Judge, that I asked for in
the original Order that you signed, that the Attorney
General agreed to provide us, asked for any prior --
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THE COURT: Well, there was only cne Order so
I don’t know what you’re talking about, original.

MR. SERATA: Well, there’s an original, an
Order to Show Cause and then there was a --

THE COURT: There’s only one Discovery Order I
signed.

MR. SERATA: -- an Order, yeah, the Discovery
Order. The Discovery Order provided that we were
supposed to get documentation of any and all
instructions that the Cumberland County Board of
Flections had on dealing with these machines.

Now, it borders on the Gusciora case because
in the opinion, in the Decision, in the fact findings
of Judge Feinberg in that case, she mandated the State
of New Jersey, that was a party to that action.

That they were to instruct the local Boards
of Election on how they were supposed to prepare the
machines. And I can only assume —-- and in the Giles
Affidavit or Certification, he says that he notified
them by email.

We don’'t have one email. We don’t have one
document. We have nothing where the State gave
instructions to the Cumberland County Board of
Elections.

Now, I understand we’re at the southerr part
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of the County and we’re isolated but my vote in
Cumpberland County 1s important to me and yours is
lmportant to you in Salem County and that’s the
problem.

THE COURT: Mr. Serata was able to get in that
I’m not a resident of Cumberland County, which iz
actually, I think, very good that you have a Judge
that’s not a resident of Cumberland County deciding
this case. Don’t you think, Mr. Serata?

MR. SERATA: T think it’s splendid, Judge, and
maybe you ought to look at Salem County.

THE COURT: I'm assigned to Cumberland County.
Anything else anyone wants to say? 1I’'m ready to make
some decisions here.

MR. COHEN: Well, Judge, you’ve seen the
Certification of Mr. Cossaboon. 1’11 make it short.

We know exactly what happened. You know that he wasn’t
trying to do anything improper or illegal.

If he had asked me and said, should I delete
anything and I'm not even counsel to him. I'm not
counsel to the Cumberland County Clerk. I would have
sald no, of course, you don’t touch anything.

THE COURT: It’s awfully bizarre, though,
don’t you think?

MR. COHEN: He was -- what he was --

The Court 37

THE COURT: T mean, don’t you think it’s
awfully strange that we have an election where the --
despite a pretty good program, the Win EDS program, the
names are programmed in wrong by a competent
administrator?

That we have a lack of proper procedures or
incompetence in doing the pre-lat test that would have
picked up a mistake by the administrator in the
programming under the Win EDS.

And that then, when I order you to provide
information and they go out and they get an exper®t, the
day before, the day before the expert’s going to come
in is the administrator makes a decision to come in and
bring in a technician. And look to see if we got this,
what is it called? The --

MS. VENETIS:: Hardening.

THE COURT: Hardening in the computer and the
technician comes in and looks at it and all of a sudden
says, boy, this computer’s running slow. I’d better do
something about it, and deletes the files that are
important to this case.

Don’t you think that those are like three
awfully strange coincidences? Don’t you think you
should be --

MR. COHEN: Well --
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THE COURT: -- sending a letter to your
criminal section, saying someone ought to look into
this?

MR. COHEN: Well, I think we’re definitely
going to look into it. Whether it goes to the Criminal
Division or whether or not the Attorney General’s
Office, someone responsible sends it to the Division of
FFlections who has a Director.

And they look into it because they’re
responsible for making sure the 21 Boards are
complying.

But let me answer this, Judge. First, to put
it into perspective; of all the elections that occurred
on June 7, none of them had that problem. This one
did. That’s a --

THE COURT: Well, you know what? We don’t
know that. We have no way of knowing that. You
haven’t gone out and done any surveys Or anything.
That’s like --

MR. COHEN: No, Judge, we have all --

THE COURT: That’s like an attorney stood in
here the other day and told me that his client hasn’t
tested positive on a drug test in a year and a half.
When I asked him how many he took, he told me none.

So that’s kind of a similar statement. They
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-- you haven’t checked any of these other elections.

MR. COHEN: Well, you know what’s really --
Judge, you know what it’s more similar to? Saying that
we’ve got the Certification of Mr. Cossaboon saying, 1
didn’t delete anything having to do with the election.

I have the Certification of Ms. Hernan.dlez,
saying we didn’t do anything with the election. We
don’t know that something wasn’t deleted. Even though
they say there wasn’t, it could have been.

You’ re right, Judge. Anything could have
happened. It could have been. There are no facts, no
facts whatsoever to support their claims at all.

Mr. Cossaboon, under penalty of law,

Ms. Hernandez, under penalty of law, have certified
that nothing used for the June 7 election to program
the machines was deleted.

THE COQURT: Okay.

MR. COHEN: Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. Anybody else wish to
ke heard?

MS. VENETIS:: Your Honor, I have one more
comment, if I could be heard.

THE COURT: I don’t know why I asked.

MS. VENETIS:: I didn’t hear your comment,
Your Honor.
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THE COURT: No, I said I don’t know why I
asked that last guestion.

MS. VENETIS:: I’1l make it very brief,

Your Honor.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

M5. VENETIS:: Mr. Giles ~- Mr. Cohen said he
will refer this matter to the Division of Elections.
That would be a possibility. Mr. Giles is here. He
has been involved in the DCR case.

He was the one who Judge Feinberg ordered to
make sure that all the counties are complying with her
Orders. Clearly, there was a problem there and I
respectfully request that this matter not be referred
to the Board of Elections.

THE COURT: Well, what if I find he didn’t
comply with Judge Feinberg’s Order? What do I do about
that?

MS. VENETIS:: Excuse me, Your Honor?

THE COQURT: What do I do if I find he hasn’t
complied with Judge Feinberg’s Order? Isn’t that why
you got Judge Feinkerg up in Mercer County to deal with
that? It’s her Order. You can go back to her.

MS. VENETIS:: And Your Honor, Your Honor,
just to let the Court know, Judge Feinberg issued her
findings in February of 2010 and an Order in March of
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2010. She issued deadlines.

The reason she issued only a Final Order a
few weeks ago is because the Attorney General’s Cffice
and Mr. Giles’ office kept missing every single
deadline that was imposed by the Court.

One of the things, and this is in the
ftranscript, that we found gquite comical and Judge
Feinberg was very upset about, was she ordered the
State to notify all of the counties how they were to
secure the voting machines.

Well, what happened is, they sent them emails
and there was no followup, and we brought that to the
Judge’s attention and she was quite upset. She said,
sending an email is not enough.

When I order you to make sure that they are
implementing security measures, it means actually
giving them information. It means making sure that
they comply with the directive that you give them.

And then the Judge asked them to bring
Certifications to her that everyone was in compliance.
So Your Honor, the reason why -- Judge Feinberg no
longer has jurisdiction of the case because she finally
signed a Final Order, but the State missed every single
deadline --

THE COURT: Well, you could go kack to her for
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enforcement of litigant’s rights.

MS. VENETIS:: We could, Your Honor.

THE COURT: It’s her Order. You can go back
to her for enforcement of litigant’s rights.

MS. VENETIS:: We can.

MR. SERATA: Then the Appellate Divisioil.

MS. VENETIS:: Your Honor, we’re in the
Appellate Division. We have a Brief due in a few days.
We believe that even though Judge Feinberg issued a
very lengthy Opinion, that it’s quite problematic.
Nonetheless —--

THE COURT: Well, but it’s not -- the problem
isn't solved by asking a Judge in Cumberland County to
entorce --

MS. VENETIS:: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: -- that Order.

MS. VENETIS:: This is a separate matter.
This really goes to the integrity.

THE COURT: Exactly. It goes to the integrity
of the election on this history.

MS. VENETIS:: Exactly, Your Honor. And the
evidence that would have permitted the Court to make a
determination about how the Court should proceed and
what happened on June 7 is destroyed, and it’s
destroyed by someone who was brought in by the
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Defendants.

THE COURT: And I think I’'ve expressed my
grave concern about that.

MS. VENETIS:: Yes.

MR. COHEN: And Your Honor, that statement is
absolutely false, based upon the facts here, besides
them saying we don’t know what’'s destroyed.

You’ re got those Certifications. Nothing was
destroyed that had anything to do with the June 7
election.

THE COURT: All right. The 2011 New Jersey
Primary Election was held on June 7, 2011. 1In District
Three of Fairfield Township, Cumberland County, four
individuals ran for two open seats on the Democratic
Executive Committee.

Following the election, the County Clerk
certified the results as Vivian Henry, 34 votes;

Mark Henry, 33 votes; Ernest Zirkle, 9 votes and
Cynthia Zirkle, 10 votes.

On June 20, 2011, the Plaintiffs,

Ernest Zirkle and Cynthia Zirkle, filed a Petition to
declare the election void and of no effect and to order
a recount or a new election.

In their Petition, they asserted that the

voting machine used in the election, a Sequoia -- was a

|

|
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Sequoia ABC Advantage Direct Recording Electronic
Voting Machine.

They also produced Affidavits of in excess of
28 voters, who stated under oath that they had voted
for the Zirkle’s in the primary election.

As a result of the filing of the June 20,
Petition, the Court on June 21, 2011, executed an Order
to Show Cause, requiring the Defendants Henry’s, the
Cumberland County Board of Election and the County
Clerk, to show cause why the relief grant -- in the
Petition should not be granted.

The Court also at that time issued an Order
directing the Cumberland County Board of Elections to
impound the Sequoia ABC Direct Recording Electronic
Voting Machine and all documents pertaining to the
election, until a determination of the issues raised in
the Petition.

On July 11, 2011, the parties and their
attorneys, with the exception of the Henry’s, appeared
before the Court in response to the Order to Show
Cause.

Prior to the return date of the Order to Show
Cause the Attorney General, on behalf of the Cumberland
County Board of Elections, filed a Response with the
Court.
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In this Response, the Attorney General
submitted a Certification of Lisbeth Hernandez, the
Administrator of the Cumberland County Board of
Flections.

Ms. Hernandez in her Certification stated;
“As a result of human error in the programming of the
voting machine used in this election, the votes cast
for Cynthia and Ernest Zirkle registered for Vivian and
Mark Henrvy.

And the votes cast for Vivian and Mark Henry
registered for Cynthia and Ernest Zirkle.”

Ms. Hernandez attached to her Certification a Memo,
dated June 24, 2011, 1in which she provided the claimed
-— her claims and facts that she believed led to the --
this error in programming.

In the June 24, 2011 Memo, Ms. Hernandez
claimed that she has programmed the voting machines in
Cumberland County since June of 2008, to avoid the cost
of the County of hiring a programmer.

She further claimed that she mistakenly
placed the position for Vivian and Mark Henry onto the
position of Cynthia and Ernest Zirkle, and vice versa.

This information was then put into the voting
machine cartridge and sent to the warehouse for
testing. The voting machine technicians inserted the
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cartridge into the voting machine and began the
necessary testing.

Ms. Hernandez then claims that the voting
machine technicians did not catch her error in the
programming.

On July 11, 2011, this Court conducted a
hearing on the Order to Show Cause. At that hearing,
the Attorney General conceded that there was a mistake
in the results of the particular election and
encouraged the Court to order a new election.

By this time, the Court had read in full the
February 1, 2010 Opinion of Mercer County Assignment
Judge Linda R. Feinberg in the Gusciora vs. Corzine
case.

This case involved a broad challenge to the
use of direct recording electronic voting machines in
the State of New Jersey and specifically, the ABC
Advantage made by the Sequoia Voting Systems.

Judge Feinberg, in her very lengthy Decision,
went 1into great detail as to how the ABC Advantage
works and the various testing procedures that are
available to avoid the type of problem and mistakes,
which the Administrator claims occurred in this case.

As a result of the Court’s review of Judge
Feinberg’s Decision, at the hearing on July 11, the
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Court raised a number of questions as to the
Administrator’s claim that these erroneous results were
simply the result of human error.

The Court questioned whether it had an
obligation to investigate further, to make sure that
the claims of human error could be supported.

The Sequoia ABC Advantage is a direct
recording electronic voting machine. The preparation
of the machine for an election begins with the County
Clerk preparing the ballot definition.

Which includes the names of the candidates,
the names of the contests and the identification of the
buttons on the voting machine that correspond to each
candidate.

The County Clerk, after preparing the ballot
definition, delivers the ballot definition to the
County Board of Elections. A specific software has
been developed in order to program the ballot
definition information into each voting machine.

This software is known as Win EDS, W-I-N,
DS, and runs on a Microsoft Windows operating system.
The ballot definition is copied to a results cartridge,
which is the size of a standard VHS tape.

This is accomplished with the use of an
ordinary Windows laptop computer, which has been
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installed with the appropriate Win EDS software. The
lLaptops and the result cartridge are to be kept in a
secured roomn.

The technicians who are to test the machine
conduct tests known as pre-lat, P-R-E dash L-A-T.

These are logic and accuracy tests, to make sure che
machines have been programmed properly.

Essentially, the testing technicians are to
conduct a mock election, where they enter a certnin
number of votes for each candidate and with the use of
simulation cartridges, will determine and assure that
the machine has been properly programmed.

Sc that the votes for each candidate are
properly recorded for that candidate. Pre-lat results
are printed or supposed to be printed and kept with the
machine and there are to be seals placed on the machine
after the pre-lat tests are conducted.

Following the July 11 hearing on the Order to
Show Cause, the Court entered what I would describe as
a Dliscovery Order, which was prepared by the parties,
after back and forth I believe negotiations. That
Order declared the results of the June 7, 2011 election
to be void and of no effect.

The Order further provided that the Sequoia
ABC Advantage machine used in the election, together
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with election results report and results cartridge, and
all other documents pertaining to the election, shall
remain impounded.

The Order further permitted additional
discovery, 1including giving expert witnesses an
opportunity to examine, take notes of, photograph or
otherwise copy the voting machine paper results report
and result cartridge.

Any laptop used to program the ballot and any
files for that purpose stored in removable storage
media.

And finally, that Order provided for a
Plenary Hearing to be held August 29, and I believe it
was continued to today, at the request of the parties.
I forget the exact reason but today is September 1 and
it’s only two days later.

On August 17, 2011, an expert retained by the
Plaintiffs, Dr. Andrew W. Appel, made an inspection of
the voting machine and the laptop, pursuant to the
Order following the July 11 hearing.

In conducting this inspection, Mr. Appel
found certain concerns with the security procedures,
which the Administrator had put in place.

He also discovered that his ability to
examine the Administrator’s Win EDS laptop was
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seriously compromised by what appeared to be an action
that someone performed on the computer on August 16,
2011, which erased a number of files, which Mr. Aovpel
or Dr. Appel wanted to examine.

As a result of this discovery, the Plaintiffs
filed a Notice of Motion for an Order to Show Cause and
presented this Motion to the Court. That Order to Show
Cause 1is returnable today.

The Court in fact signed a Second Order to
show Cause, dated August 22, requiring the defense to
appear today and show cause.

As to whether the Court should enter further
Discovery Orders for Plaintiffs to explore this
activity, which took place on the Administrator’s
laptop on August 16.

In response to the August 22, 2011 Order to
show Cause, the Attorney General filed a Certification
of Jason W. Cossaboon, Sr., a Computer System Analyst
employed by Cumberland County.

Mr. Cossaboon, in his Certification, states
that on August 16, 2011, he was asked by the
Administrator to determine the date the hardening
process was applied to the laptop used to program the
voting machines.

He apparently was not able to find a log file
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for the laptop to indicate the date the hardening was
done, however —-- last week we had an earthquake in this
courtroom so I get nervous when I hear noises.

However, he states that while working on the
laptop, he noticed the computer was running very
slowly. As a result, he deleted certain “temporary
files.” He also, for some reason, deleted the event
view logs.

In the Attorney General’s responsive papers,
he asserts that further investigation of this election
ts not necessary by the Court and that the Court should
simply order a new election or declare the Plaintiffs
the winners of the election.

In response to the Attorney General’s filing
and the position the Plaintiffs have submitted -- and
position, the Plaintiffs submitted an additional
Certification from Andrew W. Appel.

In which he set forth five possible scenarios
for what has taken place in this case. The first
scenario, which he rejects, is that the votes recorded
on election day are accurate.

The Court, and I believe the parties, agree
that this scenario seems extremely unlikely, based on
the position that all are taking that this election was
wrong.
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The second scenario proposed by Dr. Appel is
that the internals of the voting machine were
manipulated so that the election results bear no
correspondence to the voter’s actions.

Dr. Appel rejects this scenario and the Court
agrees that there has been no competent evidence
offered to suggest that the voting machine was
manipulated improperly or illegally prior to the
election.

The third scenario he poses is that poll
workers manipulated the voting machine during the
election, so that some votes were not recorded.

He rejects this scenario and I agree, the
Court agrees, as again there 1s no competent evidence
to support this theory.

The fourth scenario is that the positions of
the parties were swapped in the election ballot files
by an unauthorized intruder, wishing to flip the
election results, either through Internet access to the
Win EDS laptop or by physical access to the Win EDS
laptop.

Dr. Appel concludes that he cannot exclude
this scenario, although there is no evidence to support
this or to suggest this in the case.

Other than the rather circumstantial and
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curious concurrence of the two human errors in the
programming and testing of the machine prior to the
election, and the technician’s erasing of files one day
prior to the inspection.

The fifth scenario posed by Dr. Appel is that
the programmer switched the names in programming the
computer and the voting machine and this is what the
Administrator claims happened.

Dr. Appel also concludes that he cannot
exclude this scenario and the Court tends to believe
that this is the most likely explanation for the
erroneous results in this case, but cannot totally
conclude that.

Rased on all of the above, it is clear that
the election at issue was defective and must be voided
by the Court.

While I do believe I have the authority to
certify the Plaintiffs as the winners, I do not ieel
that this is the ideal result in this matter.

I do not know and may never know exactly why
this election was defective. I have suspicions that
something happened here that was improper and I even
question whether something happened here that may have
been criminal.

And I strongly encourage the Attorney General
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to turn this over to the Attorney General Division of
Criminal Justice, so that appropriate criminal
investigators can conduct a full and complete
investigation of this matter, to assure that
criminality did not take place.

Although the Board of Elections and the
Administrator maintain that human error was all iLhat
was involved here, for me to believe that I have to
believe that three independent errors, human errors
occcurred here, and that somewhat stretches my be.ief of
common sense and reality, but it’s possible.

Accordingly, I am ordering a new election to
be conducted on September 27 of 2011. The County Clerk
is in the room. That date, I'm told, is a date we can
accommodate. Is that correct?

MS. PROCOPIO: That is, Your Honor. In the
anticipation that Your Honor may have leaned in that
direction, I conferred with the County Clerk in
advance, spoke to their office and got that date as a
date they could accommodate.

THE COURT: And that covers all statutory
requirements of notice and whatnot? You can get --

MS. PROCOPIO: The statutory requirement of
notice 1s ten days of advertising and then they need
Time to print the ballots.
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So that gives them a sufficient amount of
time to accommodate both the printing of the ballots
and the notice reguirements that are statutorily
mandated in Title 19.

THE COURT: Now, with respect to the one
remaining issue, which is whether the Plaintiffs are
entitled to sanctions, further discovery, I will leave
that 1ssue open.

I will let you brief that, Mr. Serata and
Ms. Venetis. I’m not leaning in that direction but I
will give you the opportunity to give me whatever
authority you feel I have.

I do think this is something that has to be
investigated by the Attorney General under our
separation of powers.

Attorney General Mr. Cohen, you are to
prepare an Order --

MR. COHEN: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: -- in accordance with my Decision.
I want it on my desk tomorrow, copies to counsel.

Madam Clerk, you’re on notice of the date for
the new election. You can start what is needed. You
don’t have to wait for a written Order from me, soO we
can get this done by September 27.

I thought I could do it possibly in the
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general election but I don’t think that’s practically
possible because I don’t believe you can ask or require
volers at a general election to declare their
atfiliation.

And I -- 1t just doesn’'t seem to me to make
sense Tthat I can do it that way. So we -- and it’s
only one district so I don’t think it’s a tremendous
expense. Anything else?

MR. COHEN: Your Honor, just guickly. When
would you like the return date for our response to
their Brief? Can we have a week?

THE COURT: You can have more than that.

MR. COHEN: Okay.

THE COURT: Because my schedule in September,
we’ re not coming back to these issues probably until
October of so.

MR. COHEN: Okay.

THE COURT: You can have 30 days to respond.

MR. COHEN: How long?

THE COURT: You can have 30 days to respond.

MR. COHEN: Thank you, Your Honor.

MS. VENETIS:: Your Honor, my concern -- 1
have concerns about this new election. Clearly,
there’s no security of the voting machines at all,
certainly in Cumberland County, and throughout the
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State.

There are no requirements that any sort of
steps be taken in the pre-lat phase. Documents are not
secured that should be secured.

How do we know this isn’t going to happen
again? And that’s, again, why the Zirkle’s brought
this case, why Mr. Serata has been involved. They live
here. They want to make sure --

THE COURT: Everything you just said, ma’am,
can apply to every election that’s coming up, too.

MS. VENETIS:: Exactly, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And that’s why I'm not going
there.

MS. VENETIS:: That’s very problematic,

Your Honor.

THE COURT: That’s for Judge Feinberg and for
you to argue before the Appellate Division. That is
why I'm not -- I mean, 1f it’s not clear, I'm focused
on Fairfield Township, District 3.

MS. VENETIS:: Right, but --

THE COURT: And I'm not going to blaze down
the same path that Judge Feinberg went down. That’s
what Judge Feinberg did and that’s, apparently, what a
panel of the Appellate Division is going to be doing
soon.
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MS. VENETIS:: Your Honor, but this Court
certainly had the authority to require in this new
election that’s taking place, that certain security
measures be implemented. None exist here and whe knows
what’s going to hapren in the next election.

There was no checking by Ms. Hernandez.
There was no checking by any technicians. So really,
you’re asking the same parties who goofed up royally,
1f you excuse my colloquial expression, to do it again.

THE COURT: And those same parties are going
to be responsible for the general election on November
-- I don’t know what the date is -- November the 8'"
this year and they’ll be responsible, I assume, for
what many people say will be a very important election
next November.

And you know, this is for the Appellate
Division to address, as to whether the voting Board of
Flections are taking appropriate actions here. I'm
only focused on District 3.

And I have great confidence that this County
Board of Elections will make sure this is programmed
properly and that we’ll get this done right this time.

MS. VENETIS:: Your Honor, I’m not asking you
to focus beyond Cumberland County. The Court certainly
has and I’'m not asking you to that, as you know.
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But I respectfully request that the Court
take under consideration imposing certain steps that
should be taken in this and other elections. 1In
addition, I also --

THE COURT: I’'m not prepared to go further
than what I’'ve already ordered.

MS. VENETIS:: I also respectfully request
that the Court actually contact the Criminal Division
of the Attorney General’s Office and say that something
—-—- some criminal action had taken place here.

THE COURT: I will require the Attorney
General to put in the Order that the Attorney General
will direct, will consider making a referral to the
criminal -- what do you call it; the Division of
Criminal Justice?

MR. COHEN: Yes, the Division of Criminal
Justice. That 1is, Judge, obviously not my call or even
my superior’s calls but we will take, obviocusly --

THE COURT: I said the Attorney General.

MR. COHEN: Yes, Your Honor. We’ll take your
Order and it’s going to be passed up to -- in the
office.

MR. SERATA: Just, for the assistance of the
Deputy Attorney General, Judge, are we to assume that
you are authorizing us to get the information that was
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listed in the Order to Show Cause, that’s returnable
today? Or are you saying no to that? And just for --

THE COURT: I'm saying no more discovery at
this point.

MR. SERATA: No?

THE COURT: I’1l review what you want to
submit to me on sanctions and what other steps 1 want
to take. You say you’ll Brief that, which goes to
whether 1 have any authority to go beyond what I'm
doing today.

I"11 look at that. He can respond to that
but at this point, there’s no need for any additional
discovery.

MR. SERATA: So you’re denying this?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. SERATA: Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, folks.

MR. COHEN: Thank you, Your Honor.

(Whereupon the hearing concluded at this
time)
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